



Table of Contents

Introduction	2
Strategic Objectives	
Implementation Framework	2
Institutional Structure and Governance	3
Theory of Change and Programme Integration	4
Financial and Resource Model	5
Monitoring, Evaluation, and Compliance (MEC)	6
Risk Management and Sustainability Strategy	7
Alignment with Agenda for Social Equity 2074	8
Alignment with GSIA and DESA	8
Final Word	10
References	10



Women and Youth Empowerment Hubs

Introduction

The Women and Youth Empowerment Hubs are constituted as a network of physical and digital institutions that provide safe, well-governed access to accredited skills, dignified employment pathways, enterprise services, finance, markets, and leadership development. Their mandate is expressly intergenerational: to establish durable routes to income, civic participation, and decision-making power over a fifty-year horizon, consistent with Agenda for Social Equity 2074 and harmonized with Agenda 2063's aspirations for inclusive growth, good governance, and a peaceful, secure Africa. Each hub operates under standardized policies for safeguarding, inclusion, grievance redress, and non-discrimination, and is embedded in REC-level coordination to ensure cross-regional comparability and lawful interoperability. By integrating DESA policy instruments and the DSEP operational chassis, WYEH converts social equity objectives into enforceable duties—anchoring training, market activation, and leadership pipelines in transparent procurement, public reporting, and compliance-verified delivery. The network's architecture balances public oversight with private and civil society participation, ensuring neutrality, accountability, and user-centred service design while establishing lawful bridges to national employment systems, SME frameworks, and community finance.

Strategic Objectives

The strategic objectives of WYEH are declaratory and enforceable, aligned with DESA policy instruments and implemented through the DSEP operational chassis to ensure evidence-based targeting, technology enablement, accredited skills, and independent QA/QC:

- To expand equitable access to quality training, entrepreneurship services, and dignified work opportunities for women and youth, delivering measurable gains in income, enterprise survival, job placement, and leadership representation, with standardized verification and public disclosure.
- 2. To institutionalize gender- and youth-responsive policies and services within REC and national systems—closing participation, wage, and financing gaps—through legal harmonization, transparent procurement, open-data reporting, and codified grievance and remedy mechanisms.
- 3. To operationalize integrated service bundles—TVET certification, incubation, mentorship, market linkages, and access to lawful finance—sequenced through DSEP diagnostics and digital enablement, thereby ensuring that capacity transfer translates into sustained livelihoods and leadership succession over the fifty-year horizon.
- 4. To embed neutrality, safeguarding, and integrity protocols—conflict-of-interest declarations, beneficial ownership transparency, affordability safeguards, and performance-based contracts—so that resource flows, service delivery, and outcomes remain lawful, inclusive, and auditable across all hubs.

Implementation Framework

The implementation framework for WYEH is structured as a phased, compliance-anchored process that transforms gender and youth empowerment from aspirational rhetoric into enforceable, measurable



obligations under GSIA governance and DESA policy instruments. Each phase is sequenced to ensure lawful interoperability, transparency, and sustainability.

Phase I: Demand Mapping and Baseline Diagnostics

Deployment begins with comprehensive socio-economic diagnostics under DSEP protocols, identifying participation gaps, market access barriers, and institutional weaknesses. Geo-referenced dashboards and gender/youth equity indices are established as baseline indicators for performance tracking.

Phase II: Partner Mobilization and Governance Compacts

Public authorities (ministries of gender, youth, labour), private sector actors, and civil society organizations enter formal governance compacts codified under DESA's DLRP and DPFIP standards. These compacts define roles, decision rights, and fiduciary obligations, embedding conflict-of-interest declarations and disclosure requirements.

Phase III: Infrastructure and Digital Enablement

Fit-for-purpose physical hubs are constructed or rehabilitated under ETI standards, while digital platforms are deployed to enable remote access, e-learning, and market linkages. Broadband connectivity and civic-tech tools are integrated through DBIP and TFT programmes, ensuring interoperability and secure data flows.

Phase IV: Service Activation and Skills Transfer

Curated service bundles—TVET certification, incubation, mentorship, and lawful finance access—are activated under DTVET and DIHAP protocols. Accredited training pathways ensure that skills transfer is verifiable and auditable, with gender-responsive curricula embedded in compliance frameworks.

Phase V: Regional Networking and Scale

Hubs are networked across RECs to enable knowledge exchange, peer benchmarking, and cross-border market integration. Governance instruments mandate periodic joint reviews and public reporting cycles, ensuring that regional scale does not dilute accountability or safeguarding standards.

Institutional Structure and Governance

The governance architecture of WYEH is declaratory and enforceable, designed to guarantee neutrality, accountability, and lawful participation across all tiers.

Regional Level:

REC-level Coordination Boards oversee hub networks, harmonizing standards and ensuring compliance with continental gender and youth frameworks under Agenda 2063 and Agenda for Social Equity 2074. These boards convene periodic audits and publish open-data dashboards for transparency.

National Level:

National Implementation Units operate under ministerial mandates (Gender, Youth, Labour), with codified reporting lines to REC boards. NIUs are responsible for resource allocation, policy integration, and performance verification, supported by independent ombuds services and grievance redress mechanisms.

Local Level:

Each hub is governed by a multi-stakeholder board blending public oversight with private and civil society representation. Governance instruments include safeguarding policies, inclusion protocols, and grievance mechanisms, all codified under DESA standards. Local boards are legally bound to performance compacts and subject to independent audits.



Oversight and Compliance:

GSIA provides custodial oversight, accrediting verification bodies to conduct compliance reviews and enforce sanction regimes for non-performance. Governance instruments mandate beneficial ownership disclosure, affordability safeguards, and public reporting obligations, ensuring that empowerment outcomes are lawful, inclusive, and auditable.

Theory of Change and Programme Integration

The Women and Youth Empowerment Hubs are designed on a legally articulated theory of change that treats empowerment as a binding public-interest function, not a discretionary social service. The hypothesis is that durable gains in income, dignified work, enterprise survival, and leadership representation for women and youth emerge when four conditions are enforced simultaneously: first, rights-based policy harmonization and safeguards under continental and UN mandates; second, evidence-based targeting and accredited skills transfer delivered through standardized operational protocols; third, lawful access to finance and markets, de-risked through blended instruments and transparent procurement; and fourth, continuous public reporting, grievance, and sanction mechanisms that hold implementers accountable for equity outcomes over time.

The normative anchor is Agenda 2063's Aspiration 6—an Africa whose development is people-driven, relying on the potential of women and youth—implemented through AU gender equality instruments and the GEWE Strategy, which require effective participation, economic empowerment, and leadership representation for women and girls across sectors. This is paired with the UN Sustainable Development Goal 5 targets on non-discrimination, leadership parity, equal economic rights and access to financial services, and the enabling role of technology. Together, these frameworks convert equity aspirations into explicit duties for states, RECs, and partner institutions to eliminate structural barriers and institute measurable inclusion.

Operationally, the change pathway is sequenced through DSEP: diagnostic baselines to identify participation and pay gaps; technology enablement to open digital learning and market pathways; accredited skills under DTVET; and independent QA/QC with open-data dashboards to verify outcomes. This approach reflects global guidance that open and inclusive governance, co-creation with civil society, and transparent reporting materially improve accountability and programme effectiveness, particularly where women and youth have historically been under-represented in decision-making and service design. The WYEH model therefore embeds OGP participation standards and inclusion toolkits to make co-creation of commitments enforceable at hub and REC levels, with public scorecards disclosing progress on leadership representation, access to services, and affordability safeguards.

Finance access is treated as a structural precondition for empowerment; hubs adopt lawful, gender-responsive finance mechanisms and market activation instruments. In African contexts, the AfDB's Affirmative Finance Action for Women in Africa (AFAWA) and related We-Fi programmes provide de-risking facilities, capacity building for financial institutions and entrepreneurs, and policy reforms to bridge the documented multi-billion-dollar financing gap for women-led SMEs. WYEH integrates these instruments and associated first-loss guarantees, ensuring that enterprise incubation and mentorship translate into bankable credit lines, tailored products, and measurable investment flows to women-owned businesses. This finance architecture is complemented by the AfDB Jobs for Youth in Africa strategy and youth markers that require projects to embed employment, skills development, and entrepreneurship outcomes, aligning hub operations with REC and national employment systems to absorb trained cohorts into dignified work.



The interlocking of Major Programmes is structured to ensure that each lever produces a necessary condition of change and that the ensemble yields compounding equity dividends over the fifty-year horizon. SDEP supplies diagnostics, technology stacks, and accredited skills, turning baseline inequities into targeted interventions with verifiable outputs. EVHEI and DTVET embed pathways from vocational certification into higher education and leadership pipelines, with priority cohorts for adolescent girls, young women, and NEET youth. EEN secures continuity of learning and digital literacy, addressing educational exclusion and enabling entry into ICT-enabled enterprise tracks. DMAP activates lawful market participation and demand-side linkages; DPFIP standardizes open contracting, beneficial ownership disclosure, and affordability clauses; DBIP and TFT deliver broadband and civic-tech platforms for e-learning, e-procurement, and market intelligence; DIHAP anchors innovation hubs and accelerators; and DGEI codifies inclusion requirements—parity targets, safe-access policies, grievance redress—for all hub services. This ensemble is reinforced by OGP-style co-creation and independent reporting, making inclusion a compliance duty rather than a discretionary ambition.

The pathway from inputs to outcomes is explicit. Inputs include legal reforms and compacts (DLRP), blended finance facilities, physical and digital infrastructure, training curricula, and governance instruments. Activities comprise demand mapping, service activation (TVET, incubation, mentorship), finance access and market linkages, and leadership development. Outputs are certified cohorts, financed MSMEs, matched placements, and public scorecards detailing gender and youth participation, affordability, and grievance resolution. Outcomes are measurable gains in income, enterprise survival, job placement, and leadership representation; impacts are the long-run closure of participation and pay gaps and the institutionalization of women's and youth leadership in economic and civic spheres, aligned with Agenda 2063 and SDG5. Evidence from AU and UN initiatives confirms that gender and youth outcomes accelerate when inclusion is mainstreamed across governance, finance, and service delivery, and when a balanced approach combines direct support to beneficiaries with upstream policy reform and cross-sector collaboration. WYEH internalizes these lessons into its design and reporting cycles.

Risk mitigation is integrated into the theory of change. Policy reversals are countered through statutory mandates and REC-level compacts; market shocks are absorbed through diversified service bundles and PPP operations anchored in value-for-money and integrity standards; access barriers are reduced by affordability guarantees, digital inclusion, and outreach to marginalized cohorts. Sustained outcomes are secured by local ownership models, reinvestment of revenues, and embedding hubs within national employment and SME strategies, consistent with ILO guidance that youth employment challenges require comprehensive, integrated policies addressing both demand and supply sides, and that diagnostics and implementation must be gender-responsive.

In sum, WYEH's theory of change predicates equity on law, finance, skills, and governance—each made enforceable through GSIA oversight, DESA instruments, and DSEP operations; each measured publicly; and each aligned with Agenda 2063 and SDG5. When these conditions are jointly fulfilled, empowerment ceases to be episodic and becomes a durable, intergenerational pathway to income, enterprise, and leadership for women and youth

Financial and Resource Model

The financial architecture of WYEH is structured to guarantee predictability, transparency, and resilience across all operational phases. Financing is blended and codified under GSIA governance and DESA fiduciary standards, ensuring lawful resource flows and enforceable accountability.



Public Allocations and REC Instruments:

Baseline funding is secured through statutory budget lines at national and REC levels, harmonized with Agenda 2063 financing frameworks and gender equality commitments. These allocations are embedded in medium-term expenditure frameworks to prevent volatility and political reversals.

Development Finance Windows:

African Development Bank facilities—including the Affirmative Finance Action for Women in Africa (AFAWA) and Jobs for Youth in Africa initiatives—are adopted as primary co-financing channels. These instruments provide concessional terms, risk-sharing mechanisms, and capacity-building for financial institutions, ensuring liquidity for enterprise incubation and skills development.

Impact Investment and PPP Structures:

Private capital is mobilized through structured PPPs for hub infrastructure, digital platforms, and service delivery. Governance adheres to OECD PPP principles and DESA's DPFIP standards, embedding integrity clauses, disclosure obligations, and performance-based remuneration. Impact investors are incentivized through blended finance vehicles and social-outcome bonds linked to measurable empowerment indicators.

Revenue and Sustainability Models:

Local revenue streams are institutionalized to reinforce sustainability. These include training fees under affordability safeguards, co-working and incubation equity, and service contracts for enterprise support. Reinvestment of revenues into hub operations and skills transfer ensures continuity beyond donor cycles.

Monitoring, Evaluation, and Compliance (MEC)

The MEC framework for WYEH is declaratory and enforceable, operating under GSIA oversight and DSEP technology standards to guarantee transparency, accountability, and continuous improvement.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs):

Indicators are aligned with SDG5 and Agenda 2063 gender and youth aspirations. Core KPIs include:

- Enrolment and completion rates for TVET and leadership programmes.
- Job placement and enterprise survival metrics post-incubation.
- Income changes and access to finance for women- and youth-led businesses.
- Leadership representation in governance boards and decision-making bodies.
- Beneficiary satisfaction and grievance resolution rates.

Compliance Architecture:

Compliance is enforced through independent audits, ombuds services, and public reporting cycles. Verification bodies accredited under GSIA conduct annual scorecards and quinquennial evaluations, applying sanction regimes for non-performance or breach of safeguarding standards. All MEC instruments are harmonized with REC gender equality frameworks, Agenda 2063 monitoring arrangements, and SDG5 accountability targets. Beneficiary feedback loops are institutionalized through digital grievance platforms and community scorecards, ensuring participatory oversight and lawful recourse.



Risk Management and Sustainability Strategy

The risk management framework for the Women and Youth Empowerment Hubs is codified to anticipate, mitigate, and neutralize threats across structural, operational, fiduciary, and safeguarding domains. Each risk category is treated as an enforceable compliance obligation under GSIA oversight and DESA policy instruments, with verification through DSEP-enabled dashboards and independent audits.

Structural risks—including policy reversals, macro-economic shocks, and entrenched exclusion—are mitigated through statutory anchoring of gender- and youth-responsive mandates in national and REC frameworks, harmonized with Agenda 2063's Aspiration 6 and AU GEWE pillars on women's economic empowerment, leadership, and rights. Where market volatility risks undermine income and enterprise survival, hubs deploy diversified service bundles (TVET, incubation, mentorship, market access) and blended finance instruments (concessional windows and guarantees) to stabilize demand and liquidity for women- and youth-led MSMEs. This approach reflects international guidance that gender equality outcomes accelerate when upstream policy reform is coupled with downstream service delivery and finance access.

Operational risks—capacity gaps, technology failures, or implementation delays—are countered through phased roll-outs under DSEP, vendor-neutral digital standards, and accredited skills pipelines (DTVET) linked to REC labour systems. Broadband and platform resilience are maintained through DBIP/TFT integration and redundancy protocols; curricula and mentorship are localized and iteratively updated to track labour-market shifts, consistent with UN evidence that tailored, context-specific approaches improve youth education and employment outcomes.

Fiduciary and integrity risks—including procurement misconduct, non-transparent revenue handling, and exclusionary pricing—are mitigated by DESA's DPFIP standards and OECD PPP governance principles: open contracting, beneficial ownership disclosure, affordability safeguards, and performance-based remuneration. Social-outcome bonds and blended vehicles are conditioned on public reporting of gender/youth indicators; sanction regimes apply for non-performance or breach of neutrality, with ombuds services guaranteeing lawful recourse.

Safeguarding and inclusion risks—unsafe access, discriminatory practices, or grievance bottlenecks—are reduced through standardized hub policies (safeguarding, inclusion, grievance redress), co-creation with civil society under OGP participation standards, and open data on complaints and remedies. Public scorecards disclose enrolment parity, leadership representation, and grievance resolution rates, consistent with SDG5 targets on eliminating discrimination and ensuring equal opportunities for leadership and economic rights.

Sustainability is secured by institutionalizing local ownership models, reinvesting hub revenues in service expansion and maintenance, and embedding hubs within national employment and SME strategies. In African contexts, AfDB facilities—AFAWA for women's finance and Jobs for Youth in Africa—provide long-horizon co-financing, risk-sharing, and capacity building to sustain enterprise pipelines and dignified work outcomes beyond donor cycles. The ILO policy guidance further supports comprehensive youth employment strategies that integrate demand- and supply-side measures across diagnostics, policy formulation, and implementation, reinforcing the hubs' long-term viability.



Alignment with Agenda for Social Equity 2074

The WYEH mandate is explicitly aligned with the fifty-year trajectory of Agenda for Social Equity 2074, which frames equity as a structural condition of governance, development, and intergenerational justice. Alignment is operationalized through four enforceable pillars.

Governance integration. Hubs embed rule-of-law, transparency, co-creation, and open data within their institutional design, mirroring Agenda 2074's requirement that advocacy and leadership be lawful, inclusive, and accountable. GSIA custodianship and DESA instruments (DLRP, DPFIP, DGMP, DGEI, DTVET, DBIP/TFT, DIHAP) translate 2074 principles into binding protocols for policy harmonization, fiduciary integrity, modernized governance, gender parity, accredited skills, connectivity, and innovation ecosystems.

Equity outcomes. All service bundles—TVET certification, incubation, mentorship, lawful finance, and market linkages—are calibrated to produce measurable gains in income, enterprise survival, job placement, and leadership representation for women and youth, with affordability safeguards and grievance remedies. These outcomes are cross-walked to Agenda 2063's Aspiration 6 and SDG5 targets, ensuring continental-global coherence and independent verification over multi-decadal horizons.

Intergenerational justice. Leadership pipelines prioritize adolescent girls, young women, and NEET youth; succession mechanisms and mentorship ladders are codified so that leadership representation increases across decades. The hubs' governance compacts require youth participation in decision-making bodies and public scorecards to disclose progression towards parity, consistent with AU GEWE pillars and UN SDG5 commitments on leadership and economic rights.

Compliance and public reporting. Agenda 2074's performance compacts are operationalized through DSEP dashboards and GSIA-accredited audits, with quinquennial evaluations and sanction regimes for non-compliance. OGP participation standards guide co-creation and inclusive policymaking, ensuring that beneficiaries and civil society retain a formal seat in oversight. This architecture guarantees that empowerment gains are not episodic but structurally embedded and publicly verified.

Alignment with GSIA and DESA

The Women and Youth Empowerment Hubs are constituted within a dual architecture that separates custodial governance (GSIA) from policy and operational instrumentation (DESA), thereby ensuring legitimacy, compliance, and enforceability across all regions and over the fifty-year horizon of Agenda for Social Equity 2074. Alignment is not declaratory; it is effected through binding compacts, standardized protocols, and public reporting obligations calibrated to continental and global norms on inclusion, integrity, and open government.

GSIA custodial governance.

GSIA functions as the neutral, multi-stakeholder custodian of governance for WYEH, establishing the mandatory conditions under which hubs are accredited, supervised, and, where necessary, sanctioned. Under GSIA oversight, each hub is required to adopt enforceable provisions on transparency, participation, conflict-of-interest management, beneficial-ownership disclosure, affordability safeguards, and open-data reporting. This governance stance draws on internationally recognized participation and inclusion standards that codify co-creation with civil society and youth constituencies, insist on an equal seat at the table during policy formulation, and mandate an independently verifiable trail of commitments and results. The application of these standards within GSIA's oversight regime



ensures that empowerment is lawful, inclusive, and auditable, and that leadership pathways for women and youth are not left to discretionary practices.

DESA policy and operational instruments.

DESA translates GSIA's governance conditions into a complete, interoperable policy and delivery stack for hubs, with each instrument imposing justiciable duties on public and private implementers:

- DLRP (Legal Reform and Policy Harmonisation) requires national and REC-level legal frameworks to institutionalize gender- and youth-responsive mandates, leadership parity targets, non-discrimination, safeguarding, and grievance redress, in harmony with Agenda 2063 Aspiration 6 and SDG5. This creates the normative basis for participation, equal economic rights, and leadership representation.
- DPFIP (Public Finance and Procurement Integrity) imposes open contracting, beneficial-ownership transparency, integrity clauses, and value-for-money tests on all hub procurement and PPP arrangements. By aligning with established PPP governance principles, DPFIP assures investors and beneficiaries that financing flows and service contracts are lawful and performance-anchored.
- **DGMP** (**Governance Modernisation**) standardizes performance compacts, digital case management, and disclosure protocols, ensuring that commitments—training seats, enterprise finance, leadership quotas—are traceable on open dashboards and subject to independent verification in line with open-government good practice.
- DMAP (Market Activation) codifies lawful entry points to markets for women- and youth-led MSMEs, including transparent licensing, fair competition safeguards, and access-to-finance pathways that exploit recognized de-risking facilities, notably AfDB's AFAWA, and youth employment programmes under Jobs for Youth in Africa.
- DGEI (Gender Equity and Inclusion) translates parity and inclusion objectives into operational rules: minimum thresholds for women and youth participation in governance boards, safe-access standards for facilities and digital platforms, and systematic publication of disaggregated participation, income, and leadership data against SDG5 targets.
- DBIP and TFT (Broadband/Technology Enablement) require resilient connectivity and secure
 data pipelines for e-learning, e-procurement, grievance redress, and market intelligence,
 thereby enabling verifiable service delivery and public reporting at scale in line with
 digital-governance and open-data practice.
- DTVET (TVET and Workforce Development) mandates accredited curricula and assessment standards, prioritized cohorts (adolescent girls, young women, NEET youth), and formal articulation into higher-education and apprenticeship tracks supported by employers and REC labour systems, consistent with established youth employment frameworks.
- **DIHAP (Innovation Hubs and Acceleration)** anchors a pipeline from training to venture creation through incubators, accelerators, and compliance-ready investment vehicles, integrating with AFAWA/We-Fi risk-sharing and technical assistance so that enterprises progress from ideation to bankability and growth under a single, audited regime.



GSIA-DESA operating compact for WYEH.

Under the GSIA-DESA compact, accreditation is contingent on demonstrable alignment with DLRP/DPFIP/DGMP/DGEI provisions and on integration of DBIP/TFT/DTVET/DIHAP in the hub's annual operating plan. MEC obligations require public disclosure of SDG5-aligned indicators—enrolment and completion, job placement, enterprise survival, income change, leadership representation—on open dashboards, subject to independent audit and sanction for non-performance. This integration ensures that WYEH's service bundles lead to enforceable parity outcomes and that finance—public, concessional, and private—flows through compliant channels tied to results.

Interface with continental and REC frameworks.

GSIA's custodial role includes verifying that national and REC-level instruments used by hubs reflect Agenda 2063's people-centred development and the AU's GEWE pillars on women's economic empowerment and leadership. DESA then operationalizes these obligations via DLRP (for legal harmonization) and DGEI (for inclusion protocols), while DMAP and DPFIP ensure that market access and procurement comply with integrity and disclosure norms recognized in PPP governance. This layered interface—continental norms, REC coordination, and hub-level duty holders—ensures normative coherence and cross-regional comparability over time.

In total, GSIA supplies the lawful guardrails and independent verification; DESA supplies the policy and delivery instruments; and WYEH supplies the service bundle and outcome engine. Together, they render equity a structural condition of governance and economic participation, measured and disclosed over decades in accordance with Agenda 2063 and SDG5.

Final Word

The Women and Youth Empowerment Hubs are constituted as a lawful, long-horizon instrument that transforms inclusion into a measurable condition of governance and development. By embedding accredited skills, lawful access to finance, market activation, and leadership succession within GSIA custodial oversight and DESA policy instruments, WYEH converts equity objectives into enforceable duties with public reporting, grievance, and sanction mechanisms. The hubs' sequencing through DSEP—diagnostics, digital enablement, accredited training, QA/QC, and open-data dashboards—ensures that interventions are evidence-based and verifiable. Alignment with Agenda 2063's people-driven aspiration and the AU GEWE strategy anchors the continental mandate for women's and youth leadership, while SDG5's targets on non-discrimination, economic rights, technology access, and leadership parity provide the global canon for outcome measurement and public disclosure. In African contexts, AFAWA and Jobs for Youth in Africa supply the finance and employment architecture needed to sustain dignified work and enterprise pipelines over decades. Through the GSIA—DESA compact, empowerment becomes a structural, intergenerational pathway—audited, disclosed, and progressively realized in accordance with the fifty-year horizon of Agenda for Social Equity 2074.

References

Continental frameworks and gender mandates

 Agenda 2063 – Official AU portal (Aspirations incl. women and youth): https://www.agenda2063.africa/ [nepad.org]



- AU Gender Equality & Development / GEWE Strategy (pillars on economic empowerment, leadership, rights): https://au.int/en/gender-equality-development [africanunion2063.org]
- Agenda 2063 (Popular Version, AfDB mirror people-driven development and RECs as building blocks): https://www.afdb.org/fileadmin/uploads/afdb/Documents/Policy-Documents/Agenda2063 Popular Version English.pdf [usau.usmission.gov]

Global targets and inclusion standards

- UN SDG 5 Gender Equality (targets and indicators, DESA): https://sdgs.un.org/goals/goal5 [unodc.org]
- UN Women SDG5 target details (leadership, economic rights, ending discrimination/violence): https://www.unwomen.org/en/node/36060 [globalgoals.org]
- Open Government Partnership Civil society participation and co-creation standards:
 https://www.ohchr.org/sites/default/files/Documents/AboutUs/CivilSociety/Procedures/CivilSociety/OpenGovernmentPartnership.pdf [link.springer.com]
- Open Government Partnership Youth policy area and toolkits: https://www.opengovpartnership.org/policy-area/youth/ [pefa.org]

Finance, employment, and market activation

- AfDB Affirmative Finance Action for Women in Africa (AFAWA):
 - o Initiative page: https://www.afdb.org/en/topics-and-sectors/initiatives- partnerships/afawa-affirmative-finance-action-women-africa [legalinstr...s.oecd.org]
 - o AFAWA official site: https://afawa.afdb.org/ [legalinstr...s.oecd.org]
 - We-Fi partner overview (risk-sharing facility and TA): https://we-fi.org/implementing-partners/afdb/ [oecd.org]
- AfDB Jobs for Youth in Africa (strategy and programmes):
 - o Initiative page: https://www.afdb.org/en/topics-and-sectors/initiatives-partnerships/jobs-for-youth-in-africa [sardc.net]
 - Sector overview: https://www.afdb.org/en/topics-and-sectors-sectors-human-capital-development/jobs-youth [SLUC Proje...rompt List | Word]
- OECD Principles for Public Governance of Public-Private Partnerships (value-for-money, integrity, disclosure): https://legalinstruments.oecd.org/public/doc/275/275.en.pdf
 [opengovpar...ership.org]

Youth employment policy frameworks and evidence

- ILO Youth employment strategies (Follow-up plan, integrated policy guidance):

 https://www.ilo.org/topics-and-sectors/employment-promotion/employment-policy-action-facility/youth-employment-strategies [afdb.afric...wsroom.com]
- ILO Employment Policy Gateway (national youth strategies repository): https://webapps.ilo.org/empolgateway/ [icrc.org]



• UNEG/UNFPA-UNICEF-UNDP - Evidence synthesis on youth education and employment (lessons for tailored, cross-sector approaches):

https://www.unevaluation.org/member_publications/what-works-amplify-rights-and-voices-youth-education-and-employment